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RFP No. 900977, Addendum No. 2

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

ADDENDUM No. 1
to

RFP No. 901582
for

Procurement Assessment Consultant
Specification Clarification/Modification and Recap of the Networking/Bidders Conferences

Held on August 23, 2017 and August 24, 2017
	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), RFP Addendum has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This RFP Addendum will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://www.acgov.org/gsa_app/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/contractopportunities.jsp.


PLEASE NOTE: THE BID RESPONSE DUE DATE HAS BEEN REVISED TO SEPTEMBER 18, 2017 BY 10:00 A.M.
Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

The following Sections have been modified to read as shown below.  Changes made to the original RFP document are in bold print and highlighted, and deletions made have a strike through.

Page 3 of the RFP, TABLE OF CONTENTS, has been modified as follows:
ATTACHMENTS 
EXHIBIT A - BID RESPONSE PACKET
EXHIBIT B - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
EXHIBIT C - VENDOR BID LIST
EXHIBIT D - COUNTY OF ALAMEDA CONTRACTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL FOR GOODS AND SERVICES

EXHIBIT E - POLICY FOR PIGGYBACK OR COLLABORATIVE PROCUREMENTS

EXHIBIT F - PROCUREMENT POLICY AND PROCEDURES OVERVIEW

EXHIBIT G - PURCHASING CARD POLICIES & PROCEDURES MANUAL

EXHIBIT H - SOLE SOURCE POLICY

EXHIBIT I - CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION MANUAL FOR CBOS
EXHIBIT J - ENVIRONMENTALLY PREFERABLE PURCHASING POLICY RESOLUTION
EXHIBIT K - COUNTY PROCUREMENT
EXHIBIT L – ALAMEDA COUNTY ORGANIZATIONAL CHART
Page 5 of the RFP, Section C. (BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS), Item 1.a., has been modified as follows: 
Bidder shall be regularly and continuously engaged in the business of providing procurement consulting services to government for at least five (5) years to clients of similar size to Alameda County. This qualification must be verifiable through the three (3) references provided in Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet. At minimum, one of the references provided must be for a government agency. 
Page 6 of the RFP, Item II. (CALENDAR OF EVENTS), has been modified as follows:
	EVENT
	DATE/LOCATION

	Request Issued
	August 3, 2017

	Written Questions Due
	by 5:00 p.m. on August 25, 2017

	Networking/Bidders Conference #1

	August 23, 2017 @ 10:00 a.m.

	at:
Castro Valley Library

Chabot Room

3600 Norbridge Avenue

Castro Valley, CA 94546

	Networking/Bidders Conference #2
(Online conference option enabled for remote participation)
	August 24, 2017 @ 1:00 p.m. 
	at:
General Services Agency
Room 1107, 11th Floor
1401 Lakeside Drive
Oakland, CA 94612

OR remotely @       http://gsaalamedacounty.adobeconnect.com/admin/show-event-catalog

	Addendum Issued
	August 29, 2017  September 1, 2017

	Response Due
	September 13, 2017  September 18, 2017 by 10:00 a.m. 

	Evaluation Period
	September 13  September 18, 2017 – October 11, 2017

	Vendor Interviews
	September 25, 2017  October 2, 2017

	Board Letter Recommending Award Issued
	October 17, 2017

	Board Consideration Award Date
	October 31, 2017

	Contract Start Date
	November 1, 2017



Note:
Award and start dates are approximate.

Page 9 of the RFP, Section G. (EVALUATION CRITERIA / SELECTION COMMITTEE), Paragraph 9, has been modified as follows:
If the two-stage approach is used, the three (3) four (4) bidders receiving the highest preliminary scores and with at least 200 points will be invited to an oral interview.  Only the bidders meeting the short list criteria will proceed to the next stage.  All other bidders will be deemed eliminated from the process.  All bidders will be notified of the short list participants; however, the preliminary scores at that time will not be communicated to bidders.
Responses to Questions

Q1) Can the County provide the current procurement manuals?
A1) The following procurement manuals have been included as exhibits: 

Exhibit D - County of Alameda Contracting Policies and Procedures Manual for Goods and Services
Exhibit E - Policy for Piggyback or Collaborative Procurements

Exhibit F - Procurement Policy and Procedures Overview

Exhibit G - Purchasing Card Policies & Procedures Manual

Exhibit H - Sole Source Policy

Exhibit I – Contract Administration Manual for CBOs

Exhibit J – Environmentally Preferable Purchasing Policy Resolution

Q2) Can the County provide the Community Based Organizations (CBO) processes and procedures?
A2) Please see Exhibit I – Contract Administration Manual for CBOs. 
Q3) What is the County’s expenditure over the last two years?
A3) Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16 expenditure amount is approximately $922 million. 

FY 2016-17 expenditure amount is approximately $909 million.   

Q4) What is the County’s expenditure broken down by commodity/category for the following:
a. Number of vendors
b. Number of contracts and POs
c. Line item detail
A4) No. of Vendors: FY 2015-16 = 2,239 and FY 2016-17 = 2,158

No. of Contracts: FY 2015-16 = 1,656 and FY 2016-17 = 1,606
No. of POs: FY 2015-16 = 7,887 and FY 2016-17 = 7,336

The detailed expenditure will be provided to the awarded bidder.
Q5) Can the County provide the breakout of P-Card data to the lowest level?
A5) In FY 2016-17 the County’s P-Card spend amount was approximately $6.2 million.  The detailed breakout will be provided to the awarded bidder. 
Q6) Can the County provide a list of open contracts?
A6) The County has approximately 2,325 open contracts and 9,844 open POs known to the General Services Agency.  The County will provide the awarded bidder with a detailed list of these contracts.
Q7) Can the County provide information on sustainable and socially responsible procurements?
A7) Please see Exhibit J – Environmentally Preferable Purchasing Policy Resolution.  For additional information please visit: http://www.acgov.org/sustain/.  
Q8) Can the County provide information on business outreach programs and the results?
For information on business outreach programs please visit: http://www.acgov.org/gsa/departments/oap/documents.htm.  For data regarding outreach programs, please see Exhibit K – County Procurement.
Q9) Can the County provide information on the current organizational structure?
A9) Please see Exhibit L – Alameda County Organization Chart.
Q10) Can the County provide information on current delegated procurement?
A10) Please refer to page 5 and 6 of Exhibit D - County of Alameda Contracting Policies and Procedures Manual for Goods and Services, Contracting Legal Authority Overview.  Please refer to Exhibit I - Contract Administration Manual for Community Based Organization (CBO) for information on CBO procurement. 
Q11) Page 6 of the RFP, Section E (DELIVERABLES / REPORTS), Item 1 states:
Provide a detailed report describing the findings and recommendations resulting from the evaluation. The report shall also include a plan and timeline for the recentralization of procurement. – EXPEDITED REQUEST

Why is expedited request noted?  Has a decision been made to recentralize?  Was a study completed and if so, can the County provide the results from the study?
A11) The County would like the initial assessment to be conducted immediately, in an expedited process.  The County believes in centralizing the procurement process, no studies have been completed.  
Q12) What is the desired timeframe for the delivery of the assessment report, procedures, and training?
A12) The County’s desired timeframe for delivery of the assessment report is ASAP.  Bidders will be evaluated on their expertise and delivery time frame of the initial assessment.  The timeframe for the procedures and training will be determined after the assessment.  

Q13) Is there an established budget?
A13) The County does not have an established budget for this RFP. 
Q14) Will the County require the contractor to perform implementation work after the initial project?
A14) At this time, the awarded bidder’s participation in the implementation process has not been determined.
Q15) Does Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) preference points apply to this RFP?
A15) Yes.  A SLEB bidding as a Prime Vendor will receive a 5% Local Preference and a 5% SLEB Preference. 
Q16) Are bidders required to be SLEB certified at the time of bid submittal?
A16) No.  However, a prime bidder requesting SLEB preference points must be certified at the time of bid submittal. Bidders not meeting the definition of a small or emerging local business do not qualify for a bid preference and must subcontract with one or more County certified small and/or emerging local businesses for at least twenty percent (20%) of the total bid amount in order to be considered for contract award. http://acgov.org/auditor/sleb/overview.htm
Q17) How can vendors become SLEB certified?
A17) Vendors should contact the Auditor-Controller Agency, SLEB Certification Unit at (510) 891-5500.  A certification application package is available at http://www.acgov.org/auditor/sleb/cert.htm. 
Q18) Page 9 of the RFP, Section G (EVALUATION CRITERIA / SELECTION COMMITTEE) states:
If the two-stage approach is used, the three (3) four (4) bidders receiving the highest preliminary scores and with at least 200 points will be invited to an oral interview.

The evaluation criteria table within the RFP totals to 100 points, how are the 200 points derived to determine which bidders will be invited to an oral interview?
A18) Each of the Evaluation Criteria will be used in ranking and determining the quality of bidders’ proposals.  Proposals will be evaluated according to each Evaluation Criteria, and scored on the zero to five-point scale as stated on page 9 of the RFP.  The scores for all Evaluation Criteria will then be added, according to their assigned weight (below), to arrive at a weighted score for each proposal.  A proposal with a high weighted total will be deemed of higher quality than a proposal with a lesser-weighted total.  The final maximum score for any project is 550 points, including the possible 50 points for local and small, local and emerging, or local preference points (maximum 10% of final score). 
If a bidder does not have a minimum of 200 points they will not be invited to an oral interview. 
Q19) Page of the RFP, Section C (BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS), Item 1, letter a states:
Bidder shall be regularly and continuously engaged in the business of providing procurement consulting services to government for at least five (5) years to clients of similar size to Alameda County. This qualification must be verifiable through the three (3) references provided in Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet.
Can the County modify the bidder minimum qualifications to the following:

a. Bidder shall possess qualifications for performing the consulting work described in this RFP for a minimum of five (5) years through any combination of the following:

(1) Government procurement practitioner experience

(2) Government procurement consulting services

(3) Performing government procurement research

(4) Authoring books, chapters, research papers, or articles on government procurement

(5) Teaching college level courses related to procurement or supply chain management

b. Bidder shall provide three (3) references who can verify the qualifications stated above.

c. Bidder shall possess all permits, licenses and professional credentials necessary to supply product and perform services as specified under this RFP.
A19) No.  Bidders shall be regularly and continuously engaged in the business of providing procurement consulting services to government for at least five (5) years to clients of similar size to Alameda County.  This qualification must be verifiable through the three (3) references provided in Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet.  At minimum, one of the references provided must be for a government agency.
Q20) Page 4 of the RFP, Section B (SCOPE/BACKGROUND) states:
Bidders shall show an in-depth knowledge of government procurement, including best practices for goods and services, capital projects and Community Based Organization (CBO) procurement.
What specifically is the County looking for with regards to CBO procurement knowledge and experience?
A20) The County is looking for best government procurement practices for bringing on non-profits and community based organization, to fulfill the needs of various County programs.
Q21) Will all bidders be invited to the oral interviews or will there be a short list?
A21) The proposal evaluation process is likely to be a two-stage approach, were the top four (4) bidders receiving the highest preliminary scores, and with at least 200 points will be invited to an oral interview process scheduled for October 2, 2017.  However, the County reserves the right to interview all bidders.
Q22) When does the County anticipate the assessment to start and the report to be finished?
A22) The assessment will start upon the anticipated contract start date of November 1, 2017.  The bidder is expected to provide a schedule/timetable for the report to be reviewed and finalized at contract kickoff phase. 
Q23) Will the assessment be limited to the Procurement Department or will the consultant be required to work with other departments?
A23) The Contractor will be required to conduct a countywide assessment process that includes all departments.
Q24) If the consultant is required to work with other departments, will the County provide contact information of individuals in those departments?
A24) Yes.  The Procurement department will serve as project lead department and provide the contact information of lead individuals within the various departments.  

Q25) What is the reason the County is going out to bid for these services?
A25) The County is looking for an independent expert to assess its procurement practices. 
Q26) Has the County conducted a disparity study?
A26) No.  The County has not conducted a disparity study.
Q27) Will the County provide office space and internet connectivity to the Contractor?
A27) At this time, the County is not anticipating providing any of those services to the selected vendor.
Q28) Will the County consider standardizing the scope of work requested instead of it being open ended?
A28) The County is looking for consultant to conduct a comprehensive assessment of all procurement practices, policies and procedures throughout the County.  The County may limit the vendor scope of work during the kickoff phase of the contract.
Q29) Can the County define the meaning of recentralization of procurement?
A29) The County procurement is currently decentralized, and the County is interested in gaining better controls, savings, and utilize better procurement practices through some level of centralized procurement practices.
Q30) Is the initial procurement process currently started with other departments and then given to the Procurement Department?
A30) The procurement process can be initiated by either the departments or the procurement department for the procurement specialists to conduct.
Q31) Can the County provide a flow chart of the procurement process?
A31) Please refer to Exhibit F - Procurement Policy and Procedures Overview. 
Q32) What is the current relationship with the Procurement Department and the local business community?
A32) Please visit http://www.acgov.org/gsa/departments/oap/. 
Q33) Does the County want the pricing for a single assessment or single assessment and implementation?  How will direct expenses such as hotel, meals, transportation, etc. be accommodated for the consultant?
A33) The County is seeking a single assessment pricing and hourly wage rate for all key personnel.  All direct additional expenses will be determined after the assessment is completed.  Please note all direct additional expenses will require pre-approval from the Project Manager.  Please note that due to budget constraints, the County is looking for proposals that minimize additional direct expenses.
Q34) Should the assessment as well as implementation be outlined in the bid responses? 
A34) Yes.  The bid response shall include the assessment and implementation. 
Q35) Can bidders bidding as Prime also bid as a subcontractor for another bidder?
A35) Yes.  Vendors may submit a bid response as a Prime vendor, and also as a subcontractor for another bidder. 
Q36) Has any vendor been involved in any informal assessments with the County prior to this RFP?
A36) No.  Vendors have not been involved in any informal assessment.   

Q37) Are there any agencies that have the delegation of authority to conduct the procurement process without the Procurement Department?
A37) Please see Exhibit D - County of Alameda Contracting Policies and Procedures Manual for Goods and Services. 
Q38) Is there an approved list of consultants that the County currently uses?
A38) No.  There is no approved list of consultants that County currently uses. 
Q39) Can the County provide a list of certified SLEB vendors?
A39) Vendors can search for a SLEB vendor at: http://www.acgov.org/sleb_query_app/gsa/sleb/query/slebmenu.jsp. 
Q40) What types of communities and social agencies are typically procured by the County from a CBO perspective?
A40) The Procurement Department does not typically procure CBO based bids; therefore, we do not have a lot of data on these types of procurements.  Please see the below County websites for information on their CBO procurements. 
Behavioral Health Care Services: http://www.acbhcs.org/docs/docs.htm#Procurement 
Health Care Services Agency: http://www.acgov.org/health/indigent/ 

Probation Department: http://www.probationgrantprograms.org/ 
Social Services Agency: http://www.alamedasocialservices.org/public/index.cfm 
Q41) If the contract resulting from the RFP is to be a “lump sum” or “not to exceed” contract, can the County define what a “lump sum” or “not to exceed” contract will entail?
A41) The County intends to negotiate a “not to exceed” contract with the selected bidder based on the RFP and the bidders proposal.  Final Standard Agreement terms and conditions will be negotiated with the selected bidder.  Bidder may access a copy of the Standard Services Agreement template can be found online at: 

http://www.acgov.org/gsa/purchasing/standardServicesAgreement.pdf.  The template contains minimal Agreement boilerplate language only.
Q42) Is it the first time the County is requesting these services?
A42) Yes.  This is the first time the County is requesting these services, under the current General Services Agency Administration.  

Q43) What is the personnel count of the Procurement Department?
A43) The Procurement Department currently has approximately 30 employees.
Q44) Will questions from both bidder’s conferences as well as all e-mailed questions be included in the addendum?
A44) Yes.  Questions from both bidder’s conferences as well as all e-mailed questions have been included in the addendum.
Q45) What is the average turnaround time from when the department receives a requisition to the time the contract is awarded?
A45) The Procurement Department’s average turnaround time is approximately 4-5 months. 
Q46) What is the volume of protests to awards?
A46) The Procurement Department does not currently track the volume of protests.  

Q47) Does the County currently participate in piggyback contracts?
A47) Yes.  The County currently participates in piggyback contracts.
Q48) What is the County seeking in terms of deliverables?
A48) As stated on page 6 of the RFP, Section E. (DELIVERABLES / REPORTS). 
Q49) Does the County anticipate accounts payable and spend analysis to be part of this assessment?
A49) Yes.  The County does anticipate use of account payable and spend analysis in the assessment.
Q50) What technology does the County currently utilize to track data?
A50) The County currently utilizes PeopleSoft, Sales Force, and SharePoint.
Q51) Is there a page limit to the bid responses?
A51) No.  There is no page limit to the bid responses.
Q52) Will the County provide a list of all attendees from both bidders conferences?
A52) Yes.  A list of all attendees from both bidders conferences was post on Tuesday, August 29, 2017 and is provided in this addendum below. 
Q53) Is attendance to the bidders conferences mandatory?
A53) No.  Attendance to the bidders conferences is not mandatory.
Q54) What types of community and social services are typically procured by the County from CBOs that are in scope for the assessment?
A54) The Procurement Department does not typically procure CBO based bids; therefore, we do not have a lot of data on these types of procurements.  Please see the below County websites for information on their CBO procurements. 

Behavioral Health Care Services: http://www.acbhcs.org/docs/docs.htm#Procurement 

Health Care Services Agency: http://www.acgov.org/health/indigent/ 

Probation Department: http://www.probationgrantprograms.org/ 

Social Services Agency: http://www.alamedasocialservices.org/public/index.cfm 
Q55) Will documents requested by a specific bidder be shared with all bidders? 
A55) All of the questions and requested material will be shared with all bidders via this addendum. 
Q56) What is the expected budget for the assessment project? Is there an expected budget for development of procurement manuals, conducting training and developing CBO contracting manual?

A56) The County does not have an established budget for this RFP.  

Q57) Are there existing policies/procedures documents in place? When were they created/updated? Can existing materials be leveraged? What are the key gaps as of now?

A57) The County has added existing policies and procedures via exhibits to this addendum.   Some of the Exhibits provided have created/updated dates.  The awarded bidder may leverage existing material in their assessment.  The County is requesting the awarded vendors provide an assessment of the gaps. 
Q58) Should Bidders propose a fixed price based on the known scope of services and to develop the expedited deliverables?

Specifically:

SERVICES

a.
Perform a comprehensive assessment of procurement practices, policies and procedures throughout the County

b.
Make recommendations for improvement

c.
Review existing manuals for elements of procurement

DELIVERABLES

a. A detailed report describing the findings and recommendations resulting from the evaluation

b. The report shall also include a plan and timeline for the recentralization of procurement and implementation of improvement opportunities

Then as the assessment of specific improvement needs is better understood, develop an estimate for the level of support needed to:

PERFORM THESE SERVICES

a. Create manuals for the elements of procurement, as required

b. Participate in a CBO procurement, 

c. Create, pilot and conduct training for Procurement Specialists on the new processes 

AND PRODUCE THE REMAINING DELIVERABLES:

a. Updated manual of process and procedures for Procurement based on the adopted recommendations

b. A new manual of processes and procedures for CBO Contracting

c. Training for Procurement Specialists on the new processes adopted.
A58) The County is seeking a single assessment pricing and hourly wage rate for all key personnel.  All direct additional expenses will be determined after the assessment is completed.  The County is open to all pricing formats; however, all direct additional expenses will require pre-approval from the Project Manager.  Please note that due to budget constraints, the County is looking for proposals that minimize additional direct expenses.
Q59) What types of community and social services do you envision as the potential CBO procurement that the bidders should be prepared to participate in? Is there a timeline or deadline for the CBO procurement effort?
A59) Please see the below County websites for information on their CBO procurements. 

Behavioral Health Care Services: http://www.acbhcs.org/docs/docs.htm#Procurement 

Health Care Services Agency: http://www.acgov.org/health/indigent/ 

Probation Department: http://www.probationgrantprograms.org/ 

Social Services Agency: http://www.alamedasocialservices.org/public/index.cfm 
Q60) What services does the County want the bidder to support as part of participating in CBO procurement?
A60) Please see page 5 of the RFP, Section D (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS). 
Q61) What is the desired level of specificity expected for the manuals for the elements of procurement?  Will they be countywide guidelines / standards or will they be detailed procedure manuals?
A61) This detail will be determined during the kickoff phase of the contract. 

Q62) Can the County provide a sample procurement manual document that shows the desired level of specificity?
A62) Please see Exhibit D - County of Alameda Contracting Policies and Procedures Manual for Goods and Services. 
Q63) Should the estimated scope of the training courses mirror the scope of the six elements of procurement?
a. Goods & Services Procurements
b. Capital Projects
c. Community Based Organization Procurements
d. P-cards
e. Sustainable and Socially Responsible Procurements
f. Business Outreach
A63) No.  The training courses will be finalized after the initial assessment with the awarded bidder.
Q64) What is the anticipated number of trainees and their levels of competencies that should be included in the scope of the bidder’s response with respect to create, pilot and conduct training activities?
A64) The County does not have an anticipated number of trainees and their levels of competencies.  The training component will be finalized after the initial assessment with the input of the Procurement Administrator. 
Q65) Does the County currently have any procurement training material?  If so, how much will be re-useable?
A65) The County currently has various training material that may differ with each department; however, the re-usability of the training material will be determined after the assessment. 
Q66) Does the County have an expectation that Contractor staff will be onsite 5 days per week during the project or is a mixed model of onsite/offsite support acceptable?
A66) A mixed model of onsite/offsite support is expected, but the County is open to suggestions. 
Q67) Page 6 of the RFP, Section E (DELIVERABLES / REPORTS), Item 4 states:
Conduct training for Procurement Specialists on the new processes adopted.
Does the County have any specific expectation for the type and amount of training?  For example, is onsite classroom training envisaged or would remote sessions over the web (e.g. via Webex or similar) be acceptable?  Are there any expectations about the number of training sessions expected?
A67) No.  The County doesn’t currently have any expectation of suggested training. 

Q68) Page of the RFP, Section D (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 4 states: 
Participate in CBO procurement as needed.

Could the County clarify this requirement?  Is the Contractor being asked to provide a procurement execution capability during the assessment project?  If so, what level of effort in terms of number and type of procurement transactions to be supported by the Contractor is envisaged?
A68) This requirement does refer to procurement execution capabilities, but the level of involvement and the number/type of procurement transactions will be determined after the initial assessment. 

Q69) Can the County confirm that implementation of the recommendations and plan resulting from the assessment project is NOT within the scope of the project described in the RFP?
A69) The awarded bidders will be expected to assist the County with the planning and implementation of the recommendations from the assessment. 
Q70) Would the Contractor selected to perform the assessment project described in the RFP be allowed to bid on any future work to implement the recommendations resulting from the assessment project?
A70) No.  The participation of the selected vendor team in some future work to implement their recommendations from the assessment, may present potential conflict of interest issues.  When conflict of interest is present, the selected vendor team will not be allowed to participate in the solicitation process. 
Q71) Does the County have a team or list of candidate profiles that they would like us to include in our response?

A71) No.  The County does not have a team of list candidate profiles. 
Q72) If bidders are only proposing one candidate, how would the SLEB partnership requirement work?
A72) Bidders not meeting the definition of a small or emerging local business must subcontract with one or more County certified small and/or emerging local businesses for at least twenty percent (20%) of the total bid amount in order to be considered for contract award. 

Q73) Does the County’s 20% SLEB partnering goal refer to 20% of the project hours, 20% of the project revenue, or etc.?
A73) The County’s 20% SLEB partnering goal refers to 20% of the total bid amount. 
Q74) Does a SLEB partner need to be certified for any specific NAICS codes in relation to this RFP?
A74) No.  A SLEB partner does not need to be certified to any specific NAICS code.  The County prefers SLEB subcontractors to provide direct support services of the contract; however, the County will allow SLEB subcontractors to provide indirect support services of the contract.  
Q75) Does the County expect bidders to submit a single PDF document, with the sheets of the bid response packet inserted, along with the bidder produced pages (e.g., transmittal letter)?  If not, how many files are expected to be uploaded and what should the contents be?
A75) A single PDF file is preferred; however, due to file size limitations in the Strategic Sourcing Supplier Portal bidders may submit more than one PDF.  The County does not have expectations on the numbers of files to upload. A bid response should include the information requested in Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, Required Documentation and Submittals. 
Q76) Are there any defined deliverables or work products that the County expects to receive as part of this effort, or is it left to the discretion of each bidder to propose appropriate deliverables?
A76) Please see page 6 of the RFP, Section E (DELIVERABLES / REPORTS). 
Q77) Will non-SLEB prime bidders that meet the 20% SLEB partnering goal receive the full point value of the SLEB preference?
A77) No.  Prime bidders not meeting the definition of a small or emerging local business do not qualify for a bid preference. 
The following participants attended the Bidders Conferences:

	
	Company Name / Address
	Representative
	Contact Information

	1. 
	Berry Dunn

4741 North 24th Street, Suite 350

Phoenix, AZ 85016
	Megan O’Brien
	Phone: (480) 482-3007

	
	
	
	E-Mail: mobrien@berrydunn.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	2. 
	KPMG LLP

55 2nd Street

San Francisco, CA 94105
	Tolu Amele
	Phone: (763) 923-4571

	
	
	
	E-Mail: tamele@kpmg.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	3. 
	Treya Partners

201 Spear Street, Suite 1100

San Francisco, CA 94105
	Rahul Ahuja
	Phone: (925) 351-3119

	
	
	
	E-Mail: rahul.ahuja@treyapartners.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	4. 
	Treya Partners

201 Spear Street, Suite 1100

San Francisco, CA 94105
	Barnali Dasverma
	Phone: (415) 867-6495

	
	
	
	E-Mail: barnali.dasverma@treyapartners.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	5. 
	Miller3 Consulting

400 Pryor Street, Suite 4068

Atlanta, GA 30302
	Lauren Miller
	Phone: (404) 668-3107

	
	
	
	E-Mail: lmiller@miller3group.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	6. 
	Miller3 Consulting

400 Pryor Street, Suite 4068

Atlanta, GA 30302
	Tashelle LeBlanc
	Phone: (510) 589-6874

	
	
	
	E-Mail: lmiller@miller3group.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	7. 
	Material & Contract Services, Inc. (MACS)

5820 Stoneridge Mall Road, Suite 217

Pleasanton, CA 94588
	Dan Plute 
	Phone: (925) 460-0397

	
	
	
	E-Mail: dplute@macservices.us

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	8. 
	KPMG LLP

55 2nd Street

San Francisco, CA 94105
	Jack Blackley
	Phone: (916) 696-3488

	
	
	
	E-Mail: jackblackley@kpmg.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	9. 
	CMG Alliance

4424 Foxrun Drive

Chino Hills, CA 91709
	Maegen Luna
	Phone: (909) 414-4636

	
	
	
	E-Mail: intern@cmgalliancebackoffice.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	10. 
	GCAP Services, Inc.

3525 Hyland Avenue, Suite 260

Costa Mesa, CA 92626
	Jaime Buda
	Phone: (714) 800-1795

	
	
	
	E-Mail: jbuda@gcapservices.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	11. 
	CMG Alliance

4424 Foxrun Drive

Chino Hills, CA 91709
	Rene Cota
	Phone: (909) 548-7400

	
	
	
	E-Mail: rene.cota@cmgalliance.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	12. 
	Accenture

1415 L Street, Suite 700

Sacramento, CA 95814
	Paul Lavery
	Phone: (804) 306-6003

	
	
	
	E-Mail: paul.m.lavery@accenture.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	13. 
	Triune Infomatics, Inc.

39111 Paseo Padre Parkway, Suite 320

Fremont, CA 94538
	Rahul Kuruvilla
	Phone: (510) 364-3557

	
	
	
	E-Mail: rahulkuruvilla@triuneinfomatics.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	14. 
	Accenture

1415 L Street, Suite 700

Sacramento, CA 95814
	Sejla Begic
	Phone: (916) 606-4486

	
	
	
	E-Mail: sejla.begic@accenture.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	15. 
	Calyptus Consulting Group, Inc.

43 Thorndike Street

Cambridge, MA 02151
	Ellen Harvey
	Phone: (617) 577-0041

	
	
	
	E-Mail: eharvey@calyptusgroup.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	16. 
	CACI International

4300 Wilson Boulevard

Arlington, VA 20003
	Andrew Hernandez
	Phone: (305) 606-8013

	
	
	
	E-Mail: anhernandez@caci.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No


	17. 
	Graviton Consulting Services

8950 Cal Center Drive, Suite 255

Sacramento, CA 95826
	Vineet Srivastava
	Phone: (916) 337-6551

	
	
	
	E-Mail: vineet@gravitonconsulting.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	18. 
	CMG Alliance

4424 Foxrun Drive

Chino Hills, CA 91709
	Mario Rojas
	Phone: (714) 598-5375

	
	
	
	E-Mail: mario.rojas@cmgalliance.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	19. 
	SpendWorx LLC

199 West Hillcrest Drive, Suite 100

Thousand Oaks, CA 91360
	Mark Usher
	Phone: (805) 660-3190

	
	
	
	E-Mail: mark.usher@spendworx.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No


EXHIBIT C

VENDOR LIST

RFP No. 901582 – Procurement Assessment Consultant
This Vendor Bid List is being provided for informational purposes to assist bidders in making contact with other businesses as needed to develop local small and emerging business subcontracting relationships to meet the requirements of the Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Program: http://www.acgov.org/gsa/departments/purchasing/policy/slebpref.htm. 
This RFP Addendum is being issued to all vendors on the Vendor Bid List; the following revised vendor list includes contact information for each vendor attendee at the Networking/Bidders Conferences.
	RFP No. 901582 - Procurement Assessment Consultant

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Contact Phone
	Address
	City
	ST
	Email

	Accenture
	Paul Lavery
	804-306-6003
	1415 L St., #700
	Sacramento
	CA
	paul.m.lavery@accenture.com

	Accenture
	Sejla Begic
	916-606-4486
	1415 L St., #700
	Sacramento
	CA
	sejla.begic@accenture.com

	Accenture Consulting
	 
	415-537-5000
	560 Mission St., #1200
	S.F.
	CA
	 

	Acquis Consulting Group
	 
	415-745-3619
	100 Pine St., #1250
	S.F.
	CA
	 

	Berry Dunn
	Jennifer Vincent
	207-842-8012
	100 Middle St.
	Portland
	ME
	JVincent@berrydunn.com

	Berry Dunn
	Megan O'Brien
	480-482-3007
	4741 N 24th St, #350
	Phoenix
	AZ
	mobrien@berrydunn.com

	Bright Research Group
	Brightstar Ohlson
	510-501-2987
	660 13th St., #202
	Oakland
	CA
	bohlson@brightresearchgroup.com

	CACI 
	Kyle Cox
	 
	 
	 
	 
	kyle.cox@caci.com

	CACI International
	Andrew Hernandez
	305-606-8013
	4300 Wilson Blvd.
	Arlington
	VA
	anhernandez@caci.com

	Calyptus Consulting Group
	Dr. George Harris
	617-577-0041
	222 Third St., #2242
	Cambridge
	MA
	gharris@calyptusgroup.com

	Calyptus Consulting Group, Inc.
	Ellen Harvey
	617-577-0041
	43 Thorndike St.
	Cambridge
	MA
	eharvey@calyptusgroup.com

	CDC Evaluation & Development
	Dan Cieloha
	510-531-5500
	4735 Davenport Ave.
	Oakland
	CA
	cieloha@aol.com

	CMG Alliance
	Cheri Cota
	909-618-2043
	4424 Foxrun Dr.
	Chino Hills
	CA
	cheri.cota@cmgalliance.com

	CMG Alliance
	Mario Rojas
	714-598-5375
	4424 Foxrun Dr.
	Chino Hills
	CA
	mario.rojas@cmgalliance.com

	CMG Alliance
	Maegan Luna
	909-414-4636
	4424 Foxrun Dr.
	Chino Hills
	CA
	intern@cmgalliancebackoffice.com

	CMG Alliance
	Rene Cota
	909-548-7400
	4424 Foxrun Dr.
	Chino Hills
	CA
	rene.cota@cmgalliance.com

	CMG Alliance
	Ray Cota
	909-618-5049
	4424 Foxrun Dr.
	Chino Hills
	CA
	rene.cota@cmgalliance.com

	Deloitte Consulting
	Stephen Lee
	916-288-3920
	980 9th St., #1800
	Sacramento
	CA
	slee@deloitte.com

	Denali Group
	Conrad Snover
	415-806-6726
	6 North 2nd St., #202
	Fernandina Beach
	FL
	CSnover@denaliusa.com

	EXPERIS IT
	Collin Buresh
	415-205-5915
	345 California St.,#350
	S.F.
	CA
	colin.buresh@experis.com

	Fidelis Professional Services
	Brenda Belderol
	310-280-8861
	6990 Village Parkway, #206
	Dublin
	CA
	bfbelderol@fps-corp.com

	GCAP Services
	Stephen Mras
	714-800-1795 x12
	3525 Hyland Ave., #260
	Costa Mesa
	CA
	SMras@gcapservices.com

	GCAP Services
	Jaime Buda
	714-800-1795 x20
	3525 Hyland Ave., #260
	Costa Mesa
	CA
	jbuda@gcapservices.com

	Graviton Consulting Services
	Vineet Srivastava
	916-337-6551
	8950 Cal Center Dr., #255
	Sacramento
	CA
	vineet@gravitonconsulting.com

	Jaggaer
	Chuck Gragg
	510-913-3400
	3020 Carrginton Mill Blvd., #100
	Morrisville
	NC
	cgragg@jaggaer.com

	KPMG
	Nancy Pinkins
	916-554-1737
	500 Capitol Mall, #2100
	Sacramento
	CA
	npinkins@kpmg.com

	KPMG LLP
	Jack Blackley
	916-696-3488
	55 2nd St.
	S.F.
	CA
	jackblackley@kpmg.com

	KPMG LLP
	Tolu Amele
	763-923-4571
	55 2nd St.
	S.F.
	CA
	tamele@kpmg.com

	KPMG LLP
	Patrice Maheo
	415-377-6536
	55 2nd St.
	S.F.
	CA
	pmaheo@kpmg.com

	Material & Contract Services, Inc.
	Dan Plute
	925-460-0397
	5820 Stoneridge Mall Rd., #217
	Pleasanton
	CA
	dplute@macservices.us

	Matrix Consulting Group
	Richard Brady
	650-858-0507
	201 San Antonio Circle, #148
	Mountain View
	CA
	rbrady@matrixcg.net

	Matrix Consulting Group
	Tina Cozart
	650-858-0507
	201 San Antonio Circle, #148
	Mountain View
	CA
	tcozart@matrixcg.net

	MGO
	Robert Gill
	916-642-7058
	3000 S St., #300
	Sacramento
	CA
	rgill@intellibridgepartners.com

	Miller3 Consulting
	Lauren Miller
	404-668-3107
	400 Pryor St., #4068
	Atlanta
	GA
	lmiller@miller3group.com

	Miller3 Consulting
	Tashelle LeBlanc
	510-589-6874
	400 Pryor St., #4068
	Atlanta
	GA
	lmiller@miller3group.com

	MTG Management Consultants
	Jeffrey T. Wiggen
	206-442-5010
	401 Second Ave. South, #40
	Seattle
	WA
	jtw@mtgmc.com

	NIGP Consulting Services
	Matt Walker
	512-666-9405
	2411 Dulles Corner Park, #350
	Herndon
	CA
	mwalker@nigp.com

	Social Policy Research Assoc.
	Andrew Weigand
	510-763-1499
	1333 Broadway, #310
	Oakland
	CA
	Andrew_Wiegand@spra.com

	SpendWorx LLC
	Mark Usher
	805-660-3190
	199 W Hillcrest Dr., #100
	Thousand Oaks
	CA
	mark.usher@spendworx.com

	Tammy Rimes Consutling
	Tammy Rimes
	760-789-3689
	 
	 
	 
	tammy@tammyrimes.com

	Treya Partners
	Rahul Ahuja
	925-351-3119
	201 Spear St., #1100
	S.F.
	CA
	rahul.ahuja@treyapartners.com

	Treya Partners
	Barnali Dasverma
	415-867-6495
	201 Spear St., #1100
	S.F.
	CA
	barnali.dasverma@treyapartners.com

	Triune Infomatics, Inc.
	Rahul Kuruvilla
	510-364-3557
	39111 Paseo Padre Pkwy., #320
	Fremont
	CA
	rahulkuruvilla@triuneinfomatics.com

	WSC Consulting
	William Sims Curry
	530-899-8436
	17 Northwood Commons Pl.
	Chico
	CA
	Bcurry@wsc-Consulting.com


EXHIBIT D
COUNTY OF ALAMEDA CONTRACTING POLICIES 
AND PROCEDURES MANUAL FOR GOODS AND SERVICES
RFP No. 901582 – Procurement Assessment Consultant
To access the document, please visit: 

https://acgovdouglasobryant.sharefile.com/d-sf9dc07c69c848efb
EXHIBIT E
POLICY FOR PIGGYBACK OR 
COLLABORATIVE PROCUREMENTS
RFP No. 901582 – Procurement Assessment Consultant

To access the document, please visit: 

https://acgovdouglasobryant.sharefile.com/d-sf9dc07c69c848efb
EXHIBIT F
PROCUREMENT POLICY 
AND PROCEDURES OVERVIEW
RFP No. 901582 – Procurement Assessment Consultant

To access the document, please visit: 

https://acgovdouglasobryant.sharefile.com/d-sf9dc07c69c848efb
EXHIBIT G
PURCHASING CARD POLICIES & 
PROCEDURES MANUAL
RFP No. 901582 – Procurement Assessment Consultant

To access the document, please visit: 

https://acgovdouglasobryant.sharefile.com/d-sf9dc07c69c848efb
EXHIBIT H
SOLE SOURCE POLICY
RFP No. 901582 – Procurement Assessment Consultant

To access the document, please visit: 

https://acgovdouglasobryant.sharefile.com/d-sf9dc07c69c848efb
EXHIBIT I
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION MANUAL FOR CBOS
RFP No. 901582 – Procurement Assessment Consultant

To access the document, please visit: 

https://acgovdouglasobryant.sharefile.com/d-sf9dc07c69c848efb
EXHIBIT J
ENVIRONMENTALLY PREFERABLE 
PURCHASING POLICY RESOLUTION
RFP No. 901582 – Procurement Assessment Consultant
To access the document, please visit: 

https://acgovdouglasobryant.sharefile.com/d-sf9dc07c69c848efb
EXHIBIT K
County procurement
RFP No. 901582 – Procurement Assessment Consultant
To access the document, please visit: 

https://acgovdouglasobryant.sharefile.com/d-sf9dc07c69c848efb
EXHIBIT L
Alameda county organizational chart
RFP No. 901582 – Procurement Assessment Consultant
To access the document, please visit: 

https://acgovdouglasobryant.sharefile.com/d-sf9dc07c69c848efb
1401 Lakeside Drive, Suite 907 ( Oakland, CA 94612
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